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The People of the State of California, ex rel. the Department of Toxic Substances Control

- (“the Department”), alleges as follows:

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. The Department seeksAcivil penalties from and injunctive relief against ‘Fﬂter'
Recycling Services, Inc. (“FRS”) and Jon L. Bennett, Jr. (“Bennett”) for past and continuing
violations of the California Hazardous Waste.Control Law, Chapter 6.5 of Division 26 of the
California Health an.d Safety Code, sectioné 25100 et seq. (“HWCL”) and the implementing
regulations, California Code of Regulatidr;s, Title 22, Chapter 30, Division 4.

| | ~ PLAINTIFF " N

2. Thé Department is a public agency of the State of California organized and
existing uﬁder and pﬁrsuant to sections 58000 et séq. of the Health and Safety Code. The
Department is the state dgency responsible for the administraﬁon of the HWCL. |

3. Pursuant to sections 25181 and 25182 of the California Health and Safety Code,

the Attofney General of the State of Californié is authorized, at the request of the Department, to

commence an action in the name of the People for civil penalties and injunctive relief under the

HWCL. The Departmeht has asked the Attorney General to apply to this Court for an inj unction

. enjoining FRS, Benneft, and any and all other defendants named herein from continuing

Violaﬁons of _the HWCL.

DEFENDANTS

4, Defendant FRS is; and at éll times rele\}ant here was, é California corporation with
its headquarters in Rialto, California. FRS owns and operates a haZardous waste management
facility located at 180 W. Monte Avenue in Rialto, California (the “Faéﬂity”). The Facility isa
hazérdous‘ waste management facility pursuant to California Heaith and Safety‘ Code section
25117.1. | e

5. Defehdant Bennett is, and at all times relevant here was, an iﬁdividual who is an
owner and/or operator of FRS. The Department is informed and belileves.th_at Bennett is, and at

all times relevant here was, the president of FRS.
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6. The Department s informed and believes and thercon alleges that Bennettis
respon_slble for the overall operations of FRS ,' that Bennett controls the hazardous waste
marlagement decisions. of FRS, that Behnett is aware of the hazardous waste maﬁagement
activities at FRS, that Bennett took actions that caused some or all of the violations alleged herem,
and that Bennett’s authority, control, and actions at FRS are such that Bennett could have taken
action to prevent all of the violations alleged herein. |

7. | FRS and Bennett are “persons,” as deﬁned at Cahforma Health & Safety Code
section 25118, and “owners” and/or “operators,” as defmed at Cahforma Code of Regulatlons,
title 22, section 66260.1,0.

8. The 'Departmentis ignorant of the true names of the defendants sued herein as
Does 1-10. When the.names of these defendanté have been ascertained, theDepartment will seek
leave to amend th1s complaint to substitute the true name of each Doe defendant in place of the

ﬁct1t1ous name.

9. When reference is made in this complamt to any act of any Defendant such

' allecatlon shall mean that each Defendant, or employees or representatwes of such Defendant, did

or authorlzed such acts or recklessly failed to adequately or properly supervise, control, or d1rect 1
then employees or representatives while engaged in the management, direction, operat1on or
control of the affairs of defendant and did so while acting within the course - and scope of their

employment or agency.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

10.  This court has jurisdiction pursuant to California.Constitution, Article 6, section

- 10, and Cal_ifomia Health and Safety Code section 25181(a). Venue is proper in this court

pursuant to California Health and Safety Code section 25183. The principal office of FRS is in
Rialto, California, in San Bernardino County. ‘Los Angeles County is the county in which the

Attorney General has an office nearest to the county in which the principal office of FRS is

Jocated.
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STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

11.  The S‘iate of California has enacted a comprehensive, “cradle to grave” statutory
and'regulatory framework for the generation, handling, treatment, transport, and disposal of - o
hazardous wastes. The framework contained in the HWCL and its implementing regulations,
Whlch are found at Cahforma Code of Regulations title 22, sections 66260.1 et seq specifies
requirements for the registra‘uon tracking, storage, treatment, and disposal of hazardous waste to
protect the public and the env1ronment from the risks posed by the i improper management of
hazardous wastes. | | . |

12 ' The HWCL is the Californ’iaanalo g of the federal Resource Conservation and
Reoovery Act, 42 U.S.C. sections 6901 et seq. (“RCRA”). -Pursuant to state and federal law, the'. |
Department administers the HWCL in lieu of federal administration of RCRA in California. (See
Health and Saf. Code § 25101(d)))

13. " The HWCL provides thatan_ owner or operator o'f a hazardous waste 'management
facility may not “accept, tieat, store, or dispose of a hazardous waste at the. facility, area, or_s_ite,
nnless the owner or ,operator_holds a hazardous waste facilities permit or other grant of
authorizati_on from the Department to use and opeiate the facility, area, or site....” (See Healtn

& Saf. Code § 25201(2).)

14, In California, the Department has authority to issue permits to hazardous waste '

: management fa01ht1es (See Health & Saf. Code § 25200.)

15.  The HWCL authorizes the Court to issue civil penalties under two distinct and
alternative provisions. Section 25189 of the Health and Safety Code creates,iiability for any
negligent or intentional violation of the HWCL. Section 25189.2 is a strict liabiliiy provision,
whioii creates liability for any violation of the HWCL. A person may not be held liable for civil
penalties imposed under section 25189 and section 25189.2 for the same act. (Health and Saf.
Code § 25189.2(d).) - -

16.  Sections 25181 and 25184 of the HWCL authorize and direct the Court to enjoin

any ongoing or potential violation of the HWCL,
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(17 Section 25181 of the Health and Safety Code authorizes the Court o grant “a
permanent or temporary injunction, restraining ordér, or other order” when the Attorney Geheral,
at the request of the Department, applies for an order enjoining violations of fhe HWCL or of any
rule or requirement issued thereunder, and the Deparfmént shows that the person against thm

the order is sought has engaged in, is engaged in, or is about to engage in any acts or practices

~ which constitute or will constitute a violation of any such provision,

18.  Health and Safety Code section 25184 provides that in civil actibns brought

pursuant to the HWCL in which an injunction or temporary restraining-order is sought:

. it shall not be necessary to allege or prove at any stage of the proceeding that
irreparable damage will occur should the temporary restraining order, prehmlnary
injunction, or permanent injunction not be issued; or that the remedy at law is
inadequate, and the temporary restraining. order, preliminary injunction, or
permanent injunction shall issue without such allegations and without such proof.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

PERMITTING HISTORY |

19. ~ On or about October 23, 2006, the Department issued FRS a Serles A Standardlzed N

Permit, effective January 21, 2002 (the “FRS Permit” or “Facility Permit”). "

20.  Under the Facility Permit, FRS is authorized by the Departmerit to accept and
manage a variety of non-RCRA hazardous wastes at the Faéility; including ﬁsed automobile oil |
filters, emﬁty_aerOsol cans, and certain liquid and solid non-RCRA wasteg, as well as certain other.
RCRA -exempt wastes. - | | |

21. Spemal Condition 15 of the Facility Permit states that FRS “1s only authorlzed to

transfer, store or treat the hazardous wastestreams requiring a perrmt and spec:1ﬁed by common

'name in Part III of this Permit, Which'have been manifested under the California Waste Code

specified for that wastestream in Part III of this Permit.” The Facility Permit further states that

“any transfer, storage, and treatment of hazardous wastes not specifically authorized in Part Il or

not listed in Part III of this Standardized Permit is strictly prohibited.” (Facility Petmit, Pért I
| section 6(b).) | ‘

4
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22 7 Qn January 21, 2012, the Fa_cility Permit expired. FRS is authorized to continue to |

operate under its Facility Permit pending the Department’s decision on FRS’ permit renewal

“application, which was submitted to the Department in July 2011. (Health & Saf. Code § -

25200(c)(1)(B).) .
ENFORCEMENT HISTORY

23. On February 16 2001, the Department filed a complaint against FRS, Bennett, and
othe1 defendants in San Bernardino County Superior Court (Case No. SCVSS 74779). That
complaint sought civil penalties from and injunctive relief against FRS, Bennett, and other -
defendants for violations of the HWCL. : | -

24, On September 13, 2004, the Department, FRS, Bennett, and other defendants

entered into a settlement to resolve that litigation'in its entirety. The settlement was incorporated

_into a Stipulation for Settlement and Entry of J udgment executed by the parties (the =~
“‘Stipulation”)' which establishes compliance conditions prohibiting FRS and Bennett from

engagmg in act1V1t1es in Vlolation of the HWCL, including: the receipt for storage or treatment of

any hazardous waste regulated as ignitable waste by the U.S. EPA the disposal of RCRA-
regulated hazardous waste; the combination of any 1ncompat1ble wastes or of any reactive Waste
with any other hazardous wastes; and the failure to accurately characterize waste at the Facﬂity

25, ‘The Court entered the J udgment Pursuant to the Stlpulation on October 24, 2004,

| 26. On September 20, 21, and 24, 2007, the Department conducted a Complaint '

lnyestigation at.the Facility (“2007 Investigation”). Based on the 2007 Investigation, the |
Department cited FRS for numerous Violations of the HWCL and implementing regulations,
mcluding but not 11m1ted to: conducting tank trailer to tank trailer transfer and storage of -
hazardous waste w1thout the requisite permit or authorization from the Department fals1ﬁcation
and/or misrepresentation of the Facility’ s‘operatmg records; and failure to maintain adequate
operating records. On J anuary-23, 2009, the Department issued a detailed lInspection Report and
Summary of Violations to FRS and Bennett. |

27, On December 10, 2010, the Department issued an Admrmstrative Enforoement

- Order against FRS and Bennett (“2010 Enforcement Order”), citing the violations from the 2007

5
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) Inygsf;igggiqn andﬂassessing penalties. (Docket HWCA 2009-1956.) In early 2011, the parties

waived the 90-day hearing requirement on the 2010 Enforcement Order.

28.: On June 29-30 and July. 1-2, 2009, the Department conducted a-Compliance

- BEvaluation Inspection at the Facility (“2009 Inspection™). Based on the 2009 Inspection, the

Department cited FRS for additional violations of the HWCL and the implementing regulations.

29, On September 28-29 and October 5, 2009,»thé Department conducted aFollow—Up |
Inspection at the ‘Facility (“2009 FolloW—'Up Inspectibn”) and cited FRS for additional Violations
of the HWCL and the implementing :egulations, as well as the Stipulation.

- 30. On April 9-11, 16-17, 19-20, aﬁd 23, 2012, the Départment conducted é further |
Follow-Up Inspection at the Fa,cility (2012 Inspection™). Based on the 2012 Inspection, the
Department cited FRS for additional violations of the HWCL and the implefnen’ting ré'gulations, '
as well as the Stipulation. In addition, the Department cited FRS on the basis that many of the

violations first noted during the 2009 Ir_ispection and/or the 2009 Follow-Up Inspection were

- ‘ongoing.

31, To date, some 6f the violations at fhé FRS Facility are continuing. The
Depa:ftmén“c has determined that unless enjoined and restrained by this Coutt, the Defendants will
con"tinue to engage in acts and praétices violating the HWCL and the impléinenting regulations,
aé well as the Stipulation. _ ' |

32. The Department has requested that thé Attorney General apply to the vSuperior
Court for an injunction enj oiﬁin_g the Defendants from continuing thesé violations.

- FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

| (HWCL - Unauthorized Handling and Storage of Hazardoﬁs WaSte Streams)
(Health & Séféty Code §§ 25202(a) & 25201.6; Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30)
| (Against All Defendanfs) .
33. Paragfaphs 1 through 32 are realleged as if fully éet forth herein. -

- 34, " The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility is prohibited

from handling wastes not specified in the hazarddus‘wasvte permit or handling wastes in a manner

 not specified in the permit. (Health & Saf. Code § 25200(a); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30.)
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'35, The Facility Permlt authorlzes FRS to accept onIy non-RCRA or RCRA exempt
wastes. (Health and Saf, Code §25201.6.)

36. Special Condition 15 of the Facility Permit states that FRS “is onIy authonzed to

transfer, store or treat the hazardous wastestreams requiring a permit and specified by common

" name in Part III of this Permlt which have been manlfested under the Cahforma Waste Code

specified for that wastestream in Part III of this Permit.” The Facﬂlty Permit further states that"

“any transfer, storage, and treatment of hazardous wastes not specifically authorized in Part.I] or

not 11sted in Part III of ﬂ'L‘lS Standardized Permit is strictly proh1b1ted ?  (Facility Permit, Part |,

section 6(b) )

37.  The Department is infor_med and believes and thereon alleges that, On NUIMEerous
occasions beginning on or before Septer_ﬁber 2007 and continuing to the present, Defendants
transferred, handled_artd/ or stored hazardous waste streams at the Facility in violation of the
Facility Permit, incl_uding, but not limited to: .

: (a) RCRA hazardous Waste;
(by Haaardous waste consisting of water coﬁtamiﬁ_ated with gasoline;
(c) | Hazardous waste consisting of Wat_er contaminated with'benzene;
(). - SolicI con_'osive-hazardous waste;
(e) Hazardous waste consisting of eesticides ; and/or |
(f).  Hazardous waste consisting of pharmaceutical wastes.

38.  The Department further is informed and believes that, on various occasions .

- between 2007 and the present, Defendants handled hazardous wastes in violation of the Facility

Permit in that Defendants routinely' emptied bulk containers of solid hazardous wastes directly
onto the ground in the Facility’s receiving area prior to transferring these wastes into another bulk
container for shipment off-site.

39. - Defendants have violated and continue to violate sections 25202@ and 252_01 .6 of

the HWCL.and its implementing regulations in that FRS has accepted, and continues to accept,

handle, and store hazardous waste streams not authorized in the Facility Permit and/or in a

‘manner not authorized by the Facility Permit.
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(HWCL Unauthorized Storage of Hazardous Waste)
(Health & Saf. Code §§ 25201 & 25202(a); Cal. Code Regs, Tit. 22, §§ 66270.30 &
66264.176 ) |
(Against Ali Defendants)

40. | Paragraphs 1 through 39 are realleged as if fully set forth herein.

41. An owner and/or-operator of a hazardous waste management facility is prohibited
from storing hazardous eraste in loeations not authoriZed by the HWCL or the facility’s hazardous
waste permit. (See I—Iealth & Saf. Code § 25201(a) )

42.  The FRS Permit specifies the boundaries of the permrtted Facility. (See Facﬂlty :

,Permrt Part I, Paragraph 2.) FRS 1s authorrzed to store hazardous waste only within the

permltted boundary of the Facility, and eertarn vvaste streams can only be stored in desrgnated

areas of the Facility. (See Facility Permit, PartI Paragraph 2; see also Health & Saf Code §§

25201 25202(a) Cal. Code Regs., tit .22, § 66270.30.)

43, Anowner and/or operator ofa hazardous waste management facility is requlred to

ensure that containers holding ignitable or reactive W_aste are located at least 50 feet from the

facility’s pr_operty‘line (See Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66264.176.)
44,  The Department is mformed and believes and thereon alleges that on various
occasions between September 2007 and the present Defendants stored hazardous waste in tank

trailers at locations outside the boundarles of the Facrhty and in areas not authorized by the

Facility Permit.

45.  The Department also is informed and believes and thereon alleges that on various - B
occasions between September 2007 and the present, Defendants stored ignitable hazardous waste
in tank trarlers at locations outside of the authorized 1gmtable waste storage area, and within 50
feet of the Facrhty property line. ‘

46.  The Department further is informed and believes and thereon alleges that on
numerous occasions in October 2008, Defendants stored hazardous waste consisting of water vtfith

benzene in unauthorized areas of the Facility.
_ g
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- 47 The Department also is informed and believes and thereon alleges tha, beginning
in approximately September 2007 and continuing through approximately March 2008, -
Defendants stored oily-water hazardous waste in an unauthorized location at the Facility.

48.  Defendants havé violated and continue to violate sections 25201 & 25202(a) of the
HWCL and its implementing regulations in that Defendants stored hazardous waste and ignitable '
hazardous waste in unauthorized areas both within and outside the bounds of the Facility. . . |

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

(HWCL False Statements and/or Representatlons in Operatmg Records)
(Health & Safety Code §§ 25202(a), 25189(a) & 25189. 2(a), Cal Code Regs., tit. 22, §§
' 66270.30, 66264.70 et seq.)
(Against All Defendants)
49.  Paragraphs 1 through 48 are realleged as if fully set forth herein.
50 The HWCL prohibits a person from making a false statement or rei)resentation ina

facility”s operating fecords. (Health and Saf. Code §§ 25189(a), 25189.2(a).) “Operating

'records”'includes, but is not limited to, hazardous waste manifests, load aéc'eptance sheets, and

generator profile statements. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. "22 §8 66264.70 et seq.)

51. - The Department is informed and beheves and thereon alleges that at various times

»between 2007 and the present, Defendants made false statements and/or representations in FRS’ A

-operating records, including, but not limited to:

-(a)  hazardous waste generator pi"oﬁles stating that loads of RCRA hazardous
waste were excluded from regulation under RCRA; and
(b)  inbound and outbound hazardous waste manifests stating'that loads of

RCRA hazardous waste were excluded from regulation undér RCRA.' (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §

1 66264.71.)

52. | Defendants have violated and continue to violate sections 25202(a), 25189(a) and
25189.2(a) of the HWCL and its implementing regulations in that Defendants made false

statements and/or representations in FRS’ operating records.
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FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(HWCL Inadequate Testmg of Incomlng Hazardous Wastes and/or Fallure to Comply
with WasteAnalys1s Plan)
(Health & Safety Code § 25202(a); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66264.13 & 66270.30(a)).
| | (Against All Defendants) |
53. Paragrapns 1 through 52 are realleged as if fully set forth herein.
54.  The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste rnanagement facility is required to

1nspect and, 1f necessary, analyze” each incoming sh1pment of hazardous waste. (Cal. Code

Regs., tit 22, § 66264.13).

55. - The Facility Permit incIudes a Waste Analysis Plan _(“WAP”), which describes the
methods, protecol and analysis used by FRS to »accept treat, and recover waste material at the
Facﬂlty The WAP also prov1des that generator profiles must be updated at least annually, and
must correctly 1dent1fy the proper sh1pp1ng name of the Waste to be shlpped to FRS.

56." The Department is informed and believes and thereon alleges that on numerous
occasions beginning on or bef'ore September 2007 and continuing to the present, Defendants did
not adequately inspect and/or analyze inconnng shipments of hazardous waste, including but not
limited.to the failure to properly analyze samples of hazardous waste consisting of water
contaminated with gasoline for pH; sediments, organics, and flashpoint. | .

57.  The Department also is informed and believes and thereon alleges that on
numerous occasions beginning‘ on or before September 2007 and continuing to the present,
Defendants did not ensure that hazardous waste consisting of water contammated with gasohne
was properly manifested, note any dlscrepanc1es and reJ ect such waste or attempt to resolve such

discrepancies with the generator or transporter, as required by the HWCL and its implementing

regulations and the WAP.

58..  The Department is informed and believes that on numerous occasions between
2007 and the present, Defendants have failed to ensure that the profiles submitted by hazardous
waste generators sending waste to FRS are updated at least annually and are correct. The

Department further is informed and believes that Defendants have, on numerous occasions
| ’ 10
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between 2007 and the present, approved generator profiles with improper or incorreét proper

shipping names.

59.  Defendants have violated and continue to violate section 25202 of the HWCL and
its impleﬁlenting rsgulatibns, as well as the WAP, 1n that Defendants did ﬁot adecj.uately inspect '
and analyze incoming shipments of hazardous waste, did not ensure that the hazardous waste they
received matched the waste as described on the generator profiles appfovcd by FRS, aﬁd did not

ensure that they generator profiles approvéd by FRS are updated annually and are correct.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(HWCL - Failure to Prépare Hazardous Waste Manifests)
(Health & Saf. Code §§ 25202(a)',-25160(b)(1) &:251.89.2;
Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66262.11, 66262.20(a), 66262.23(a), 66264.71(c),'-& 662’7.0.30)
(Against All Defendants)

60.  Paragraphs’1 through 59 are realleged as if fully set forth herein.

61. The HWCL provides that any peréon generating hazafdou_s waste that is
transported; or submitted for transportation, for offsite handlirig, treatmer_lt,. storage, disposal, or
any combinat_ion thereovf, is required to compiete a manif_est prior to. the time the.waste.,is
trénspo;ted,‘or bffered fof 'transportatioln. (Heélth & Saf. Codé § 25160(b)(1); Cal. Code Regs., tit.
22, § 66262.20(a).) - | |

62. A manifest must contain information about the generator and transporter of a

hazardous Waste, as well as the proper shipping name, hazard class or division, identification P
- number, and pacl;ing group of the waste itsel_f and the number and type of containers shipped-.

(Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, Ch. 12, App. 1.)

63.  The Department is informed and believes and thereon alleges that, beginning in or
about Septerribér 2007 and continuing to the present, Deféﬁdanté failed to properly prepare
manifests for loads of RCRA hazardous waste shipped from the Facility, including describing

characferistically ignitable RCRA hazardous waste liquids as non-RCRA hazardous waste liquids

and describing hazardous waste containing nickel as non-hazardous waste.

1
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64. Defendants have Vlolated and contlnue to Vrolate sect1ons 25202(a) 25 160(b)(1)

-and 25189.2 of the HWCL and its anlementrng regulatrons 1nclud1n0 but not hrnlted to

California Code of Regulatrons, title 22, sections 66260.1 1,66262.20, 66262.23, 66274.71(c),
and 66270.30, in that Defendants failed to prepare hazardous vwaste manifests for hazardous waste
loads shipped from the Facility. | ,
| | SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(HWCL - Failure to File Complete Biennial Reports)
(Health & Saf. Code § 25202(a), Cal. Code Regs tit. 22, §§ 66262. 41(b) & 66270. 30)
(Agamst All Defendants)

65. Paragraphs 1 through 64_are realleged as if fully set forth herein.

66. 'Californ'ia Code of Regulati.ons,title 22, section 66262.41 reqtrires a hazardous
waste management facility to submit a Biennial- Report to the Department. The Biennial Report -
shall include the name, address, and identification number of each off-site transfer, treatment, -
storage, or dispos'al facility to pvhich waste was-shipped; the name and identification number of
each transporter used; .a descript-ion ’of,' EPA,hazarddus waste number, California hazardous v;zaste .-
category number, DOT hazard class, and quantity of waste shipped to an off-site transfer,
treatment, storage, or disposal facﬂity; a description of’ the efforts undertaken during the year to

reduce the volume and toxicity of waste generated and a descrrptron of the chances 1n volume

and toxicity of waste actually achreved durlnc the year in comparison to previous years (Cal.

!

Code Regs tit. 22 § 66262.41(b).)

67. The Department is informed and beheves and thereon alleges that the Hazardous -

* Waste Biennial Reports submitted by FRS t(_) the Department for the calendar years 2007 and '

2009 did not include the ,California State Hazardous Waste Numbers (state waste eodes),‘ and as a
result, they were incomplete. To date, Defendants have not provided complete Biennial Reports
to the Department

68.  Defendants have violated and continue to violate the HWCL and its implementing

regulations by failing to submit complete Biennial Reports to the Department.

12

COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF




w

NN

Nl Oy W

10
11

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
| 25
2
27

28 |

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(HWCL Failure to File Un-Manifested Waste Report)
: (Iiealth & Saf. Code § 25202(a); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30(a), 66264.76(a))
| (Against All Defendants)

69.  Paragraphs 1 through 68 are realleged as if fully set forth herein.

70.  The owner and/or operator. of a hazardous waste management facility that accepts
hazardous waste for treatment, storage, or disposal without an aecompanying manifest is required
to prepare and submit to the Department an un-manifested waste report. (See Cal. Code Regs., tit. |
22, 8§ 66264.76. )

71, The Department is informed and believes and thereon alleges that, at various times

between September 2007 and the present Defendants. failed to prepare and submit un-manifested

waste: reports for hazardous waste recelved at the Facility without manifests. -

7 Defendants have violated and continue to Vlolate the HWCL and its implementing
regulatrons 1nclud1ng but not limited to Cahforma Code of Regulatlons title 22 section
66274.76, in that FRS has failed to submit un-mamfested Waste reports to the Department

- EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION -

(HWCL Failure to Send Signed Manifests to Generator) '
(Health & Saf. Code-§ 25202(a); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66264.71(a)(2)(D) & 662_70'.3.0)
(Against All Defendants) . |
. 73.  Paragraphs 1 through 72 are realleged' as if fully set forth herein.
74. The owner and/orl operator of a hazardous waste management facility that receives
a hazardous waste shipment accompanied by a manifest is required to sign and date the manifest,
note any discrepancies in the manifest, irnmediately provide one copy of the manifest to the
transporter, send eopies of the manifest to the generator within 30 dayrs, retain a copy of the
manifest at the facﬂity, and submit a copy of each manifest to the Department. (See Cal. Code
Regs tit. 22, § 66264.7L) |
75.  The Department is 1nformed and beheves and thereon alleges that on numerous

occasions between September 2007 and the present, Defendants failed to ‘provide signed copies of
' 13 '
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hazardous waste manifests to the generators within 30 days of receiving hazardous waste

shipments.

76.. - Defendants have violated and continue to violate the HWCL and its implementing .
regulations, .ineluding but not limited to California Code.of Regulations, title 22, section
66264.71, 1n that Defendants failed to send signed copies of hazardous waste manifests to the
generators. |

. NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION

: V(HWCL - Use of Unregistered"Transporter) A |

(Health & Saf. Code §§ 25202(a) & 25163; Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § 66270.30) '

| ‘(Against All Defendants) | '

.77.' ' Paragraphs 1 through 76 are realleged as if fully set forth herem . .

78.  The HWCL provides that it is unlawful for a person to transfer custody ofa
hazardous_ waste to a transporter who does not have a registration issued by the Department.
(Health & Saf. Code § 25163.)

79.  The Departnlent is informed and believes that, at various times between September
2007 and the present, FRS transferred custody of a hazardous waste to atransporter that did not
hold a Valrd registration issued' by the Department. vBy way of example only, the Department is
informed and beheves that between approximately January 2010 and August 201 .1, FRS used a
transporter, A&G Enterprises, EPA ID # CAL00033 6075, whose registration expired on |

September 30, 2009, to transport at least 35 shipnients of non—RCRA Hazardous Waste Sohd

(Soﬂ) under proﬁle C355 to an out of state facility, the South Yuma County Landﬁll in Arizona.

80. Defendants have Vlolated and continue to violate the HWCL and its unplementmg
regulations in that FRS has transferred custody of hazardous waste to an unregistered transporter
for shipment offsite. |
/1 |
"

///
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) TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION _
' (HWCL Fallure to Mlnlmlze the Release of Hazardous Waste or Hazardous Waste
- Counstituents) _
(Health & Saf. Code § 25202(a); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, §§ 66270.30 & 66264.31)
| | (Against All Defendants) -

81.  Paragraphs 1 through 80. are realleged as if folly set forth hérein'.

82.  The owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management facility is required to
operate the faciiity in such a manner as to mininiize the possibility of a release of hazaroous waste |
or hazardous waste cohs’tituents to air, soil, or surface water. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 22, § |
66264.31.): - | |

83. As noted in .Paragraph,?;& above, the Départment is informed and believes that, on
various occasions betWeen 2007 and the prosent, Defendants routinely emptied baik contair_lers of

solid hazardous wastes, including but not limited to roll-off bins and end dump trailers, directly

“onto the ground in the Facility’s receiving area prior to transferring these wastes into another bulk

container for shipmént off-site. | |

84.  The Department further is informed and believes that Defendants failed to take
precautions to minimize the‘possibility of a release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste
constituents to -air soil, or surface water when it engaged in this activity.

85. - Defendants have Vlolated and continue to violate the HWCL and its 1mplement1ng

eculatlons including but not limited to California Code of Regulatlons title 22 section |

66264.31, in that Defendants failed to m;mrmze the possibility of a release of hazardous waste
and hazafdous waste constituents to air, soil, or surface water when it efnptied bulk containers of
solid hazardous wastes onto tﬁe ground in the Facility’s receiving area. |

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

.(Failure to Comply With.Ju'dgment & Stipulatioh for Entry of Judgment) -
(Against All Defendants)

86. .Paragraphs 1 through 85 are realleged as if fully set forth herein.
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87.. Health and Safety Code section 25188 authorrzes crvrl penaltres for violations of

an order 1ssued pursuant to the HWCL

88.  Asdescribed in Paragraph 23 above, the Department .ﬁled a civil complaint against

- FRS and Bennett, among other defendants, on February 16, 2001. On September 13, 2004, the

Departrnent, FRS, and Bennett, among other parties, entered into the ‘Stipulation to resolve the
clairns in that action. The Court entered Judgment pursuant to the,Stipulation on October 27,
2004. _

89.  The Judgment specifically states: “it is hereby ordered that ... Defendants shall
comply with the provisions of Section 7 of the Stipulation.l’

90.  Section 7 of the Stipulation establishes numerous “Compliance Conditions,” and
states that defendants “shall comply with each of the following provrsrons »?

' 9T. The Department is informed and bel1eves and thereon alleges that, at numerous
times between September 2007 and the present FRS and Bennett have violated the Cornphance
Condltrons set forth in S_ect10n 7 of the St_lpulatlon, 1nclud1ng but not limited to as follows: _

| (a) Section 7:1 of the Stipulation states: “FRS shall comply with the California
Code of Regulations and with all provisions of its September 27, 1997 vxtaste analjrsis plan.or any
authorized revision of that plan.”” As noted in Paragraphs 53 through 59 above, the Department'is'
informed and believes that FRS has violated the Faeility’s.WAP on Varlons occasions between
September 2007 and the present. ' | |
| (b) Section 7.2.1 state_st “FRS shall not engage in any activities for which the

United States Environmental Protection Agency, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 6925, requires the

‘owner or operator to obtain a permit for treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous waste.” As

alleged in Paragraphs 33 through 39 abot/e, the Department is informed and believes that FRS has
accepted RCRA hazardous waste at the Facility,‘ in-violation of the Stipulation, the HWCL and its
implementing regulations, and the Facility Permit.

- 92, Defendants have violated and continue to violate the Stipulation and the Judgment
by their actions between 2007 and the present, in violation of section 251 88 of the HWCL and its

implementing regulations.
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REOUEST FOR RELIEF.

| The Department requests that the Court grant rellef as follows _
1. Enter judgment that FRS, Bennett, and Does 1-10 have violated the HWCL as _
described in the First through Eleventh Causes of Action; |
2. Enter judgment that FRS, Bennett, and Does l-l(l are liable for eivil penalties for

those violations as authorized by Health and Safety Code section 25‘1 89 or, in the alternative, by

Health and Safety Code section 25189.2, according to proof;

3. Enter judgment that FRS, Bennett, and Does 1-10 are liable for civil penalties vfor
those violatlons as authorized by Health and Safety Code section 251 88, according to proof;
4. Enter temporary restraining orders, preliminary injunctions, permanent
injunctions, or other orders requiring FRS, Bennett, and Does 1-10 to comply with the appl‘icable

permlts, the HWCL, and/or the regulations aclopted’ thereunder;

5. " Grant the Department 1ts costs of suit herein; and
6. Grant such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper
Dated: December 5, 2012 . ' . Respectfully_ Submitted,

KamaLA D. HARRIS _

Attorney General of California
BRIAN W. HEMBACHER

Supervising Deputy Attorney General
SARAHE. MORRISON -

Deputy Attorney General

Original signed by Catherine M. Wieman

CATHERINE M. WIEMAN
Deputy Attorney General :
Attorneys for the People of the State of

~ California, ex rel. the Department of Toxic
Substances Control

LA2012507649
51194392.doc
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